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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

To

The Sharcholders

Qatari German Company for Medical Devices (Q.F.5.C.)
Tioha — State of Qatar

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial stetements of Qatari German Company for Medical Devices
(Q.1.5.C) (the “Company™), Doha-State o Qalar, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive mcome,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notzs to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.,

In our opinion, cxcept for the effects of the matters deseribed o the Basix for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying [uancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
finanecial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance vrith Tnternational Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

» Intangible assel amounting to QR.10,328,937 as of Necember 31, 2021 reprosents patent
releting to the safely syringss, Management is in the process of asscssing the fistare cocnomic
value that will he generated from the patent. In the absence of the assessment by the
management and by alternative andit proccdures, we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence with respect to the recoverable amount of the palsol #s at
Deocmber 31, 2021, Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustment Lo
the reporied balances were necessary.

= The company has not made adcquate provisions for expected credit losses apgainst impaired
trade receivables and provision for declined in et realizable value [or slow maoving
inventories as al December 31, 2021. In addition, we did not receive adequate documentary
evidences for the reversal ol cerlaln provisions disclosed in mote 21 amounting to
QR.4,056,987 through other income for the year ended December 31, 2021,

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, Our responsibilitics
ander thoge standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Respensibilities for the dudit of the
Financial Statements scotion of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
‘he International Fihics Standards Board for Accountauts’ Code of Lifics for Professional
Acocuntants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statcments in the State of Qatar, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requircments and the TESBA Code. We beliove that the audit evicence we have
ohtained is sufficient end appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Material Uneertainty Related o Going Concern

We draw atterion o note 2 to these financial statements, which indicates that the company’s accumulated
logzes amounting to QR.125,388,182 exceeded i1s chare capital by QR 9 888 187 as at DNecember 31, 2021,
Further, as at that date, current liabilitics of the company cxceeded its current asset by QR.22.548,151.
Pursuant o the Article 295 of the Qatari Commercial Companics Law Mo.11 of 20135, if the shareholding
company’s lnsses reaches half ol its share capital, the Board of Directors should call for an extraordinary
general assembly to discuss the continuation of the Company or dissolution before the term speeified in its
Articles of Association. If the board of directors fails to call for the extraordinary general assembly oz il il
was impractical to adopt a decision on such maller, any interested party may request the competent court
to dissolve the company. These conditions along with other malters set-Torth in nate 2, indicate the
existence ol material uncerlainty that may cast significant doubt on the company's abilily to continue as a
eoing concern. Our opinien is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of iatters
We draw att=ntion to following notes to these [nancial statements;
= Note 6(p), where the company is in the process of ascertaining the carrying amounts of revalued
buildings that would have been recognizad had the buildings been carried under the cost model
for disclosure purpost,
= Note 7(b), where in prior years the company frequently champed its use of buildings as to
investment properly and property, plant and equipment. However, the managemenl is in the
process of ascartaining the cumulative cost and changes in fair value of the respective buildings
under investment properties,
= Note 15(b) whers the company is in the process of delenmining, Uhe amouut of depreciation based
o the revalued carrying amount of the building and hased on its original cost, in order fo transfer
from revaluation Teserve o retained earnings,
Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above maticrs.
Key Aundit Matiers
Key nudit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most significance m our
andit of the financial statements of the cumrent year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the finencial statements as a whole, and in forming our epmion thercon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these metters. In addition to the mattzrs described in the basis for qualified opinion,
material uncertainty telaled o going conuern aod swplasis of matter paragraphs above, we have
determined the matters described below are key audil matiers to be communicated m our report:

Key audit matlers How these key audit matters were addressed |
o in our andit ]
Loans and borrowings; Our procedures in relation ta Inans and
The compeny’s capital structure is severcly geared | borrowings included but not limited;
due o high level of debt financing, The debt capital | o Oblained dirser confinmations for the
mainly consists of loans and borrowings including halances prevailed as of roporiing date, -
| bank overdrafts. The loans and bomowings are »  Obtained facility agrecments meluding
considared as key audit matter due o followings: rescheduled amreements and details of the
s The amount of total debt is sigmificant to the assels pledped against the borrowings,
slalemenl of inancial position, s Tnsure  whether the  prescntation,
s Debt to equity reaches to 435 1, due to disclosures and clzssification relsted to
severe bank financing, loans and bomowings adequate end Zairly
» The significant portion of bunk bomrowings stated,
are concentrated to a single financial ¢ [ asample basis, verified the movetments
instimition, which may lead to the liquidity it loans and borrowings to ensure whether |
risk, the related assertions were met,
e Most of assets of the company are pledged | »  BEwvaluate  the  independence  and
againsl loans and borrowings, reasonability of loans oblained from the
e Considerable amount of fimanes cosl we lender and assessed whether tremsactions
incurred by the company, are arm’s length,
s HBepayment obligation and reschedule »  Evaluate whether related party relationship
oplions are fequently changed, with the above lender {ex-major
e Higher gearsd level lead to significant sharcholder) exist or nol as of repodting
ciTects to stake holders, date,
o Tdentification of cxistcnce/nor-cxisience of | ¢  Assessed the going concern implication
related party relationship with the lender is due 2o severe debt financing,
highly judgmertal. R




| Waluation of Buildings classified under Property,
Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties;
As diselosed in the notes 6 & 7, the company’s
property, plant and squipment inclodes a building
that is held at revaluation model amounting to QR
36,984,036 as at December 31, 2021 (December 31,
20200 QRIEE90,118) and inveslinenl properiies
includes & building that is held a. fahir value modsl
amounting to QR.12,590.000 as at December 31,
2021 {December 31, 2020; QI 12,590,0000).

To determine the revaluation and [air valuation of
the buildings, the company uses the expeit’s
independent valuation report.

The valuation of buildings are considered as key
audit matter due to tollowings;
- Canwing wvalues of the buildings are
material,
- Futimating the fair value which is reguired
for rovaluntion and fair value model is

| Equipment

Cur procedures in relation to Buildings
classified wunder TProperty, Plant and
and Investment Properties
included but not limited:

# LDvaluate and assess the credentials,
methodology,  appropriateness,  key
assumplions and olber factors inchuding
valuation inpuls wsed by the externally
appointed expert for the valuation of
building,

e Based on our knowledgs and experience of
the imdusity and unnderstanding of the
assets maturc, ovaluate the approprialeness
of the wvalued amount recorded by the
compary,

= Assessed the adoption of valuation cifccts
to these financial statements are in line
with the International Financial Reporting
Standards  meluding  adequacy  of the

; : disclosures in the louncial slalemenis.,
complex  process nvolving number of

sismificant assumplions and judgments,

- Nipnificant level of professional skepticism
required to assess crodentials and olher
inputs used by the expert,

« The cxpert will exercise judgments n
particularly in determining the relevant
valuation models and inputs.

Orther Information

The management is Tesporsible for the other informaton. The other informalion cunprises the
information included in the Company’s Anmual Report of year 2021 (the “Annual Report™) but does not
include the financial stalements and our anditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report iz expected to be
made available Lo us after the date of this anditor’s report,

Our opinion an the finarcial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
Torm of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes nvaiable and, in doing 3o, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audi, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Anonal Repart, if we conslude (hat lhere is a matedial imisstatemert therein, we are
Tequired to communicate the matier to those charged with govermance.

Ruspunsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial starements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the applicable provisions of OQatari
Commercial Companics Law, and for such internal control as manazement determines is necessary to

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or ervor.

In preparing the firancial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue s a zoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going concern and using the

" poing concern basis of aceounting unless management either intends (o liguidate the Company or tn cease
vperalions, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are respomsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Proccss.




Anditor’s Responsibilities for the Aundit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives aré to obtain reasonable assurance about whefer the financial statements as a whole ars
free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranive hal au
audit coadueted I accordance with Tnternational Standards on Aunditing will always detect a material
misstaternent when it cxists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggrepate, they could reasonably be exawsted o influence the economic decisions
of nzers tzken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance willh lwemational Standerds on Auditmg, we exercise profossional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the andit, We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due Lo
fraud or error, desizn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain andit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The tisk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuliing from errar,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intcntionul omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an mderstanding of miernal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policiss used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosurcs made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of menagement’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the midit evidence obtained, whether 2 material unecertainty exists relzted to events
or eonditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability Lo confinue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a materizl uncertainty exisls, we are required to draw attentien in
our anditor’s report fo the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
arc inadoquate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidenee obtainad
up to the date of our auditers report, However, fulure events or conditions may cause the
Company 1o cease to continue as a going concemn.

«  Evoluate the overall presentation, structure and cantent of the financial stalements, Including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
evenls in a manner thal achieves fair presentation.

We couuun icate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matlers, the planned scope
and liming of fae audit and significant avdit findings, ncluding any signifcant deliviencies in mternal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requitements regarding independence, and to communicate with then all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, actions aken
Lo eliminate threats or suleguards applicd.

From the matters commnumnicated with those charged with governance, we determine those mattars that
were of most sigrilicance in the audit of the financial slatements of the current year and ar therefore the
key audit malters. We describe these matters in our anditor’s reporl unless law or regulation precludes
public: disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a mater
should not be corumumicated in our report because the adverse consequences of dning so would
Teasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthetmors, in our opinion, proper books of aceonnts have been kept by Qatari German Company for
Medical Devices (Q.P.5.C) (the “Company™), Doha State of Qatar, an mventory count has been
conducted in accordance with established principles, and the financial statements comply with the Qatari
Commercial Companias’ Taw No. 11 of 2015 and the Company's Articles of Association. Except for the
matters coscribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs, Material Uncertainty Related to Going
{oncern paragraph and Fmphasis of Matter paragraphs, we have obfained all the information and
explanations we required for the purpose of our audit, and are not aware of any violations of the dbove
mentioned law or the Articles of Association having occurred during tha year which might have had a
material effect om the business of the company or on Iis financial positien.

="
QFMA Licence No. 120152 % st
Dohs, March 15,2022



QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES (Q.P.5.C.)
DOHA - 5TATE OF DATAR

EXHIBIT "A"
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021
MNute 2021 2020
(QR) (QR)
ABBETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant, equipment and capital work in progress -fi- 111,003,988 115,849,403
Investment propertics -7- 12,590,000 12,550,000
Right-of-use assets 8- 38,285 97.578
Intangible assels -0- 10,329,937 10,329 937
Total Non-Current Assets 134,012,710 138,366,918
CURRENT ASSETS - o
Inventories -10- 27,064,594 22 308,860
Accounts and cther receivables -11- 21,276,872 16,203 300
(Cash in hand and at hanks -12- 5,191,962 3,035,218
Total Current Assets 55,533,735 41,547 378
Total Assels - 187,545 Rds 180,414 2596
EQUITY AND LTABTLITTES
EQUITY
Share capital -13- 115,500,000 115,500,000
Izgal reserve -14- 30,349,621 30,431,538
Revalnation reserve -15- 11,999,694 11,999,554
Acenmmlated losses (125.388.152) {126,421 A08)
MNet Equity — Exhibit 32,661,133 31,509,826
NON-CURRENT LIAEILITIES
Employees’ end of service berefits =16- 1,081,676 973,021
Loans and borrowings - long term porlion -17- 77,640,558 47,755 463
Lease liabilites Jong tenn portion -8 80,612 G0.763
Total Non-Current Liabilities 78,802,846 08819257
CURRENT LIABILITTES B o
Louns and borrowings - short term portion -17- 50,108,902 2R.6ED102
Iease lizhilities -short term portion -8- 8,604 R.458
Accounts and ather payables -18- 11,695,134 6,351,903
Dank overdraft -12- 14,269,226 15,035,750
Total Corrent Liabilities 76,081,866 - 50,085213
Total Liabilities 154,884,712 148904470
Total Equoity and Liabilities 187,545,845

These financial statem
behall by: '

'LL.

il il

Mr. Ali Hagsan AlLFmadi
Chairman of the Roard of Direciors

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 33 CONSTITUTE AN
FINAMCIATL STATEMENTS

Mr. Mohar
Viee Chaui

s

e

Hlks

s were approved by the Board of Direclors on March 15, 2022 and signed on its

L,

ad Abdyilmencim Al-Sayved
b Board of Directors

"TEGRALPART OF THESE

S AT T
Talul Aho-CGhavalch & Co.
{Jautar Office



QATAR[ GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES (Q.P.5.C)

DIOHA — STATE OF QATAR

EXHIBIT "B"

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR T0OSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Revenue
Onperating cost

Geross profit

Other income

Feverszl of praviously reeognized impaimment losses
Selling and distribution cxpenses

(General and adminislrative expenses

Deprocialion

Operating profit before flnance cost for the year

Finooece cosl

Frofil for e year — Exhibits C & D

Uther comprehensive income —Kxhibit C
Total comprehensive income for the year — Exhibit ©

Earnings per share
Hasic and diluted sarnings per share ((}R.)

Mote

-19-

-21-

By Jy
23-
4=

E L

26

2021 2020
(QR.) (QR.}
40,554,535 24,568,510
(20,662.847y (18342 245)
10,891,688 6,226,265
6,608,911 3.466,36]
- 4 AR08
{800,054) {461,172)
(5.385.287) (4,365,534)
(5.413.424) (5,484 838
5,061,834 3,769,163
(4,781,006) (2,884 920,
1,150,828 884,183
-0- o=
1,180,528 RR4 183
00710 0.008

Hl E s T N
Talal Abu-Cihazaleh & Cn,

Qutar (MTice

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1'T0 331 CONSTITUTE AN INTEGEAI PART OF THESE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i
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JATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES (Q.P.5.C)

DOHA - STATE OF QATAR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

EXHIBIT """

Mote
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the vear — Exhibit B
Adjustments for:
Diepreciation
Finance cost
Reversal of provision for expected credit losses
Provision fur employees® end of service benefits
Reversal of proviously recopnized impairment losses
Inventories written off’
Reversal of provision for slow moving inventories
{Gair) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment written off

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

- Inventories

- Accounts and other receivables

- Avcounts and other pavables

Cash generated from (used in) Operations
Emplovees” end of service benefits paid

Social and sports fund contribution paid

Net Cash {rom (used in) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITLIES
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and capital work in progress
Procesds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Met Cagh (used in) Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
MWet moverents in loans and burrowicgs (principal)
Met movements in bank overdralt

Finance cost paid

1 .ease lisbilities setllement

Met Cash (used in) from Financing Activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the yeat

'ash and cash equivalents at end of the year -12-

H

2021 2020
(QR.) (OR.)
1,180,828 884,183
5,413,424 5 484 838
4,781,006 2,884 980
(1L,805,235)  (1,015,865)
190,754 165,780
- (4,388,081)
67,451 121,050
(1,461,752) D=
-0- (8,300)
- 153
7576476 4,128,738
(3,361,733)  (11,158,657)
(2,478,344)  (12.606,043)
5315815 3,874,784
7072214 (15,761,180}
(82,100) (189 R66)
(22,105) -0-
T6,968,000  (15,951,046)
(558,616) (664,842)
0- 23,000
" (558,616) (641.842)
(2,484226) 20,100,041
(766,524) (118,890)
(990,363)  (1.303.426)
(11,527) (11,527)
(4,252,640) 18,665,198
72,156,744 2,073,310
3,035,218 961,908
5,191,962 3,035,218
p i AN

Talal Abu-Ghazaleh Fe O
Qatar Office

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 33 CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF TIESE

FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
e



QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES (Q.P.5.C.)
DOHA - STATE OF QATAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1)

2)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Qztari German Company for Medical Devices (Q.P.S.C) (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the State of Qatar as a Qatari Public Shareholding Company by virtue of
FEmir Deciee No39 issued on October 15, 2000, under the Commerciz]l Repisiration
Wo. 23349 on February 10, 2001,

Ll Ee Company is listed in the Qatar Exchange.

The company’s regisered office is al P.O. Bux 22536, Doha-State of Qatar and the
principal place of business is in Abu Hammour, Doha-State of Qatar.

The Company s primarily engaged in the manufacture of single use disposable syringes
and {rading in medical equipment, tools and supplies.

During the vear 2020, with the apptoval of the board of directors and on the strategic
business diversification aspect, the company was in the intention of merging with well
diversified (unlisted) limited Hability company based in State of Qatar. However, during
the curent year the above decision has been revoked with the mutual consent of the both
parties.

GOING CONCERMN

The company’s accumulated losses amounting to QR.125388,182 exceeded its share
capital by QR.9.888,182 as at Deccmber 31, 2021, Further, as at that date, curreat
lizbilitics of the company exceeded its current asset by QR.22,54¥,131. Pursuant lo the
Article 205 of the Qalarl Commercial Companies Law No.11 of 2013, if the sharzholding
company's losses reaches hall of ite share capital, the Board of Direetors should eall for an
extraordinary general assembly o discuss the continuation of the Company or dissolution
before the term specified n its Articles of Association. Tf the board of directors fails to call
for the extraordinary general assambly or i it was impractical tn adopt a decision on such
matier, any inleresied party may request the competent courl to dissolve the company. In
addition, the company’s business operations are mainly financed through bank borrowings
and hank overdrafte by local finsncial nstintions. The repayment oblipations of such
borrowings are extended on a frequent basis and as disclosed in note 17(g), the company
aad its assets are mortgaged to debt providers. These conditions indicate (e existence of
material uncerlainty that may cast significant doubt about the compeny’s ability to
continue as a going COnCer,

However, these finsncial stztements do not include amy adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded assets amounts or to the amounls and
classitication of liabilities that may be necessary if the company is unable lo continue as a
going concern due to followings;

+ the sharcholders have resolved, at an extraordinary general assembly held on
March 31,2021 to contnue operations of the company,

s also the menagement is in the process of taking measures of Inproving its
operations,

« the Board of Directors conlirmed their intention to obtain the consent from a local
development bark (M/S. Qatar Development Bank, one of mejor sharcholder until
December 31, 2020% not to make any demand of repayment of the borrowings
within anoiher twelve months period from the reporting date.

e the Board of Directors confirmed that the ahove local develepment bank will not
request to liquidate the company or seize the pledged assets as @ result of non-
repayment of borrawings, il any.

s the Board of Directors confirmed their plan to pass a resolution =t annual gencral
mectmg o obtain shareholders’ consent to continue the operations of the
compary, and to enable the Company to continue as a going concem and meet ils
financial commitments when they fall dus,
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4)

ii)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING SEANDARDS (IFRSs)

New and amendments to the standards, new and revised interpretations and
annual improvements to TFRSs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in
the financial statements

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements and the notes
attached fhereto sre consistent with those used in the preparation of the previous financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2020, except for certain amendments to the
standards that became effective in the cument year as described below:

Amendments to the Standards Effective Date
IFES 1a Covid 19- Belated Rent Concessions April 0, 2021
IFRS9, 74,16 & TAS 39 Interest Rate Bench hark Relurm — Phase 2 January 01, 2021

The sbove amendments to the standards have been adopd by the compary, where applicable,
and which did not have any material impact on the acecounting policies, [inancial pasiion ar
performance of the Company,

New and amendments to TFRSs issued but not yet effective

The following new, amendmenis and improvements to the standards have heen issued but are
not yet cifective and the company intends to adopt these standards, where applicable, when
they become effective;

Mew Standard Effcctive Date
IFRS 17 Iagarance Contracts Tamoary 01, 2023
Amendments to the Standards Effective Date
[FRS 3 Referance to the Conceplual Framawork Tampary 01, 2022
IAS 16 Procecds Before Intended Uze January 01, 2022
TAS 37 Onerous Contacts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract  January 01, 2022
[a51 Clzssification of Liabilities as cument/non-cwrent  January 01, 2023
1AS8 Defirition of Accounting Estimates January 0L, 2023
1A51 &£ ITRS Disclosures of Accounting Policies Janwary (11, 2023
practice statements 2
TAS 12 Deferred Tex related to Assets end Liabilities

arising from a single Transaction Tarmary 01, 2023
1AS 28 & TFRS 10 Sale or Contribulion ol Assels Letween an Deferred

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Indefinitely

In addition to the above as part of annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 cycle,
the fullowing standards have been amended;

IFR5 1 Subsidiary as a first-time adopter January 01, 2022
TFRS 9 Tees test for derccognition of financial liabilitics  Janmary 01, 2022
IS 16 Lease incentive Jarmary 01, 2022
1A 4] Taxation in fair value measuremeant January 01, 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of Compliance

The accompanving financial statements have been prepared n.accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the applicable provisions of
the Qatari Commercial Companies Law Mo, 11 ol 2015,

b Basis of Measurement

The financial staiements have heen drawn up from the accounting records of the
Company under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain
non-current assets and financial instruments. Historical cost is generally based on fair
valuz of the consideration initially given in exchange [or assets,

) Functional and Presentation Currency

‘The financial statements are presented in Qatari Riyals (QR.), which is lhe Company”s
fimctional curency and all values are rounded to the nearest Qatari Rivals ((R.) except
when otherwise indicaied,
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£)

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The informativn about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amount recognized in the financial statements are described in the nota 5.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recoguition and measurement

Trems of property, plant and equipment, except for building on leasehold land which
was carried at revalued amount, arc measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment Tosses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
atiributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intanded by the management. The cost of self-
constructed assels includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition lor their intended
usz, the costs of dismantling and removing the jtems and restoring the site on which
thoy wre losated, and capitelized borrowing cost,

Purchased softwarc that is micgral to the functionality of the relaled equipment is
capitalized as parl of that equipment. When parts of an iterm ol properly, plaut and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any revaluation surplus of building on leaschold land 13 recognized m other
comprehensive income and presznted in the revaluation reserve in equity, except to
the extent that ¥ reverses revalualion decrease of the same assct proviously recognized
in the profit or loss, in which case the increase is rzcopnized in (he slaiement of profit
or lose, A revalnation deficit is rccognized in the statement of profit or loss, except to
the cxtent that it offsets an existng surplus on the same asse: recognized in the asset
revalualion surplos.,

An item of property, plant end equipment iz derecognized upon disposel or when no
firmre economic benefits are expected bum its use of disposal. Gains and losses on
disposal of an tem of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of proparty, plant and equipment,
and are recognized net within other income in the statement of profil or loss and other
comprehensive incomé, When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the
revaluation reserve are transferred Lo retzined earnings. Valuations are perfommed
froquently cnough to ensure that the fair value of the revalued asssts do not differ
materially from its carrying valus.

When the use of a property, plant and equipment changes from ewner-gccupied to
investment property, he properly is re-measured to fair value and reclassified
accordingly. Anv pain arising on this re-measurement 1s recogmized m profil or 1oss to
the ecxfent that it reverses 2 previous Impairmend loss on the spacific property, with
any remaining gain recognized in other comprehensive income and presenced in the
ravaluation reserve. Any loss is recognized in profit or loss.

The cost of replacing a compaonent of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in the camrying emount of the itemn if it is possible that the fulune ceonomic
benelits ermbodied within the component will flow to the company, and its cost can be
measured raliably, The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment
are Tecognized in profil or loss as weurred,

Depreciation is caleulzted over the depraciable amount, which 15 the cost of an asset
or other amount substituted for cost, less its residua! value. Depreciation is recognized
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated ussful lives of cach
component of an item of property, plant and equipment as follows:



g)

Buildings on leasehold land 30 years

Machinsry and equipment 25 years
Metor vehicles 3 vears
Furniture, fixtares and equipment 5 vears
Computer and softwars 3 years

Depreciation method, residusl value and useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Tinti] December 31, 2017, the machinzry end equipment was depreciated on the basis
of utilization, however, during the vear ended December 31, 2018, the company has
changed the method of depreciation for machinery from the basis of utilization o
straighl-line. 1lence, the management, based on an independent technical revaluarion
teport, believes that the remaming uselul life of machinery is 23 years.

Capital work in progress

Capital werk in progress is sated at cost less any impairment. Cost includes the
cxpenditure incurred on capital projects that have not been completed. When the
assels are voinpleted and ready for thelr inlended use, the canital work in progress will
he capitalizced to appropriae category under property, plant and eguipment and
depreciated thercalter,

Investment Properties

Investment propertiss are properties (land or building or part of building or both) held
either to earn rental income or for capital apprecistion or for both, but not for sale in
the ordinary course ol business, use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for adminisTztive purposes. Investment property is messured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognized in the
profit or loss. Cost inchudes expenditure that is directly attributable fo the acquisition
of the investment property. 'Lhe cost of seli-constructed investment properly inclodes
the cost of matzrials end direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing
the investment property to a working cendition for their intended use,

Any gain or less on disposal of an mvestment property (calculated as the difference
between the nel procesds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is
recognized in profil ur luss. When an investment properly that was provieusly
classified as property, plant and squipment is sold, any related amovnt inchided in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained eamings. When the use of a propery
changes such that it is reclassificd as property, plant and equipmert, its fair value at
the dale of reclassitication becomes ils cost for subsequent accounting,

Intangible Asscts

An intangible asset is an idenfifiable non-monetary asset without physical subsiance
which provides future economic benefits. are ncloded in the statement of financial
position under the categery of intangible asscts and carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impainment losses, i€ any. Expendinre incinred on
soflwars is capitalized only when it is probable thet this cxpenditure will enable the
assct to generale future economic benefils in excess of its originally assessed standard
of performance and this expenditure can be measured and atiributed w e assel
reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Intangible assets (definite) are amortized on a straight line basis in the profit or loss
from the date when the asset is availabls for vse, over the best estimate of its useful
eeonomic 1il based oo @ pattern in which the assel’s sconomic benefits are consumed
by the company.

The estimated useful life of the intangible asset in the current and comparative periods
1= as follows:

Patents and loow-how Indelinite uselul life
Computer solbware 3 years

2
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Tke intangible asset with an indefinite useful life should not be amorlized and the
uselul lile of sceh an asset should be reviewed at sach reporting period to determine
whether events and ciroumostances continue to support an mdefmite uscful Tile
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the nseful life assessment from
indefinite to finite should be accounted for as a change in an sccounting estimate, An
inrangible asset i= derccognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expectad ftom its use and subsequent disposal.

Leases

The Company ussesses ul conlract inception whether a contract is, or containg, a lease.
‘That iz, if the contract conveys the ripht to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration,

The Company as a Lessee
The Company applics a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
cxeept for short term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assels representing the vight
to use the nnderlying assets.

Right-af-Uixe Asxets

The company recognizes right-of-use assets af the commencement date of the lezse
{i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for usc). Right-ofuse assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusled for any re-measurement of lease ligbilities. The cest of righl-ol-use assels
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and
lense payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a siraight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease teym and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Accordingly, the right-of-
use assets are depreciated over 12.5 years from lamuary 01,2015.

If cwmnership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lsase term
or the cost reflects the cxercise of o purchase option, deprecation is caleulated nsing
the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use asseis are also subject to
impairment.

Lease linbilitics

At the commenzement datss of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities
measured af the presant valoe of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include tixed paymenis less any lease incenfives receivable, variable
lease payments thal depend on an index or a rate, ard amonnts expected to be paid
unler residual value guarantess.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventorizs) in the period in which the
event or condition thal tripgers the payment acours.

Lu calenlating the presznt value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental
horrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinahle. After the commencement date, the amount of
|easc liabilitics is mereassd to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, ths camying amount cf lezse liabilities is re-measurad 10
there is a modification, @ change in the lease term, a change in the leass payments
{(Example: changes to futurs payments resulting from a change in an index or rate vsed
{0 determine such lease paymenis) ur a change in the assessment of an option o
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term lease and Teave of low-valie avsels

The company applies the shortterm lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leasc of propertics, machinery and equipment, if any (those lease that have leaze ferm
of 12 months or less from the commencement dale and do uol contain a purchase
aption). It also applies the lzase of low-value assets recognition exemption to lease
certain itetns that iz considered of low value, Lease payment on short-term leases and
lease of low value assets (if any) are recognized as expensc on a straight-line hasis
over Lhe leaze term.

9.
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The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the company is a lessor are classified as finance leass or operating
leaze, Wherever the lerms of the lease tramsfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, the confract is classitied as a finance leasc. All other leases
are classified us operating leases. When the company is an intermedizte lessor, it
acconnts for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease
is classified s: a tinance or operating lease by teference o the right-ofuse assel
sriging from the head lease.

Rental income from operating lease is recugnized vn a straight-line basis over the
lease term and is included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income cue to its cperating mature. Initial direct costs; incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lsase ars added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recoznized over the lease temm on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents
are recognized as revenue In the perind in which they are earned.

Ampunis cue from leases under finance leases are recopnized as receivible al the
amonnt of the company’s net investrment in the leases. Finance lease ncome is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant pericdic rate of retun on the
company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Impairment of Nou-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, al euch reporting date, whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. IF any indication exists, cr when annual impairment testing for
an asset iz required, the Compsany estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable arrount is the higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset decs not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of thosc Tom other assets or companies assets. When the camying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and i written down to its recoverable amount.

In zsscssing valie in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounled Lo their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenls of
the time value of moncy and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transuclions are taken into account. 1f no such
transactions can be identified, an sppropriale valuation model is used. These
calenlations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other availuble [air valic indicators. Impairment losses of
cortinuing eperations are recogrizad in the statement of profit or loss in those expense
catepories consistent with the finction of the impamed assel, except for assets
previously revalued where the revaluation was tuken to other comprehensive income.
In this case, the impairment is also recognized in other comprehensive income up to
the amount of ary previous revaluation.

Assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
proviously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
TF such indication exisis, the wmnpany cstimates the asset's recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset's rccoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset docs not exceed its Tecoverable amount, nor exceed the camying amournd that
would have heen determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss unless the asset iz carried st a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Loventories

Inventorics are measured at the lower ol cost and net realizable value. The cost of
inventeries is valued based on a weighted averape cost basis, and incluces expendilure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production er conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them Lo their existing location and condition.

-10-
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In case of manufaclured inventorics and work in progress, cost includes an sppropriate
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizahble value is the estimated selling price in the vrdivary course of tusincss,
less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Provision is made for
ohsolete and slow-moving items based on management’s judgment.

Fmployees® End of Service Benefits

The Company provides for employees end of service benefils determined in
accordance with the applicable provision for Qatari Labonr T.aw hased on employees”
salaries and period of employment and are paid to the employees on termination or
resignation of employment with the company. The company has no expectation of
settling its employzes =nd of service hensfits obligation in ncar terma and hence
classified this a non- current Hability.

Share Capital - Ordinary Shares

(rrdinary shares zre classified as equity. Bomus shares and rights issued, If any will be
shown as an additicn to the share capital. Issue of bomus shares are deducted from the
accummlated relained earnings of the company. Any share premium on rights 1ssue are
accounted In compliance with local statutory requirerments.

Provision

A provision is recogmized in the statement of [inancial pesition when the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probuble el
an atflow of economic benefits will be recuired to setle the obligation. 1f the eflect
is material, provisions are determined by considering the expected future cash flows
ol the Company.

Finapeial Instruments

A financial instrument is any confract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entily
and a financial liahility or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at inftial recugnition, as subsequently measured at
amorlized cost (AC), fair value through other comprehensive income (FyOCIL), and
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). The classification of finaneiz] assels at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characieristics and
the Company's business medel for managing thom.

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair valie through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significani [nanving component or for which the
Company has applicd the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determ’ned nnder TFRS 15, In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
al amoriized cost or fair value through other comprehensive meome (FVOCI), it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and interest (SPPLY on
the principal amount outstanding, This assessment is referred to as the SPPT test and s
performed at an mstnment level. The Company’s business model for managing
financial assets refers Lo how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model deterraines whether cash fows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the fimancial aseets, or bath.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by rapnlation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)

are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset,

i



Subseguent Measorement
For purposss of subssquent measurement, financial assets are classified in [our
calegories:

» [inancial asscts at amortized cost (debt instruments)

s Vinancial assets at Fair value throngh other comprehensive income (FVOCT)
with recyeling o cumulative gains and losses (debl nstruments)

»  Finaccial assers designated at fair value through other comprebensive mcome
(FYOCLD) with no rtecycling of cumulative gams and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

s Financial assets at fair value through profit or less (FVPL)

As of reporting date, that the company contracted with only the [inancial assets at
amortized cost,

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments)
The company measurss fmancial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:
» The financial asset i held within a business model with the objective to hold
finarcial aszets n order to collect contractual cash flows and,
» Tke contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inlerest on the principal
arnount eutstznding.

Finencial assets al umortized cost arc subsequently measurcd using the cffective
interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recoghized
in profit or loss when the assel is derecognized, modilied or impaired. The company’s
financial assets at amortized cost includs accounts and other receivables znd bank
deposits.

Dierceognition

The company derecoznizes a financial assel only when the contractual rights te the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transters the financial asset and
substantially all the risks end rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks end rewards of
ownership and continues to contrel the transferred asset, the company recognizes its
retained interest m the ssset ard an associated ligbility for amounts it may have to pay.
Ifthe company rctams subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
atranaferred fnancial asset, the company continues o recognize the financial asset
and also recognizes a collatecralized bomowmp for the proceeds received. On
derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the dilference hetween
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the cousideration reczived and receivable
is recopnized m profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a detx
ingrument classified at FVOCL, the camulative gain or loss previonsly accumulated in
the investmews revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or losa.

Tn contrast, on derscopnition of an investment in equity instrument, if any which the
comparny has clected on initial recognition to measure at FVOCIL the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulatad in (he inveshments sevaliation teserve is net
teclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred te retained earnings.

Impairment of Finaneial Assets

The Cempany recognizes an allowsnce for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
instruments not held at fair valuc through profit or loss. ECLs arc based on the
difference between the conractual cash Mows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Cempany expects to receive, discountzd al an
approximation of the original cffective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collareral held or other credit enhangements that
are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are recognized in two stages. Vor cradit
exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recopnition and ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from defan’t cvents that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has heen a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowence is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
gxposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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For trade receivables and contract assets, the Compuny applies & simplified approach
in caleulating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes i credit risk, but
imstead recoonizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLe at each reporting cate.
The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjnsted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic envirorment, In certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company
is unlikely to Teceive the outstanding contractual amounts in full hefore laking inlw
accolint any credit enhancemerits held by the Company. A [inancial assetis written of 1
when there is no reasonzbls expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial Liahilities

Initial Becognition and Measurement

Financial Kahilities are classified, at initial recagnition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profi: or loss and finencial liehilities at amortizud cost. The Company’s
financial liabilities include accounts and other payables, loans and bowrowings and
hank overdraft.

All financial lighilities are recognized initially al tair valuz and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable ransaction costs.

Subsequent Measurcment

The measurcment of financial lighilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

Finaneial Liabilitics at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value throngh profit or loss include financial liahilities held
for trading and financial Habilities designated upoen initial recognition as al fair value
through profit or logs,

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This catcgory also includes derivative
financizl instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defimed by IFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for tading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held fur rading we recognized in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition at fair vale through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
1ecognition, and caly if the criteria in TFRS 9 arc satisfied. ‘The Company has not
desipnsted any financial liability at fair value through profit or Loss.

Finaneial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

This is the category mos: relevant to the Compary. After initial recognilion, the loans
and borrowing amd other fnancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amorlized
cost using the ciliective interest, (ains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derccognized as well as through the effective nterss! rale
amortization process. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount
or preminm ¢n acquisition and fees or costs that are an inlegral purt of the effective
intercst rate. The effective interest rate amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

This category penerally applies to accounts and nther payables, loans and borrowings
and bank overdraft.

Derecognition .

A financizl lisbility is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
cxisting linbility are substantially modificd, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the originul lidbility and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Qifsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statemznt of fimancial posilion if there is a currently enforcezble legal right fo offiet
the recognized amounts and there is 2n intention to scttle on a net basis, 1o realize the
assets and setile the liahilities simultaneously.

Revenue from Contracls wilh Customer balances

Contract assets

A confract asset is the right to considerstion in exchange for poods or services
transferrad to the customer. If the Company performs by transfering goods or
serviees to @ cusiomer before the custormer pays consideration or hefore payment 1s
due, 4 contracl assel is recognized for the camed consideration that is conditional.

Accounts Receivables

Accounts receivable represents the company’s right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional (ie.. only the passage of time is required before payment of the
comsideration i3 due). The accounting policies of financizl assets in financial
instruments paragraph details the initizl recognition and subseguent measurement of
accounts rzceivable.

Conlrael Linbililies
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a custormer for

which the company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration 1s due)
from the customer.

If & customer pavs consideration before the company transfers goods or services (o the
chstomer, a contract labitity is recogniced when the paymew: is wade or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract Habilites arc recognized as revenue when the
company performs under the contract.

BRevenue Recopnilion

The company’s revenue streams are mainly consist from following major sources;
Revenue from contracts with customers

Rental income from mvestment properties

Interest mcome
Oibers

oW VY

The company applies different recognition criteria znd measurcment prineipals for
each of above revenue streams s follows;

Revenue from Contracty with Customers

The company is engaged to manufacture single use of disposable syringes and tading
medical equipment, tools and supplies. The compeany’s contracts with customers for
the delivery of goods generslly include one performance obligations. The company
has voncluded that the reverme from sale of goods should be recognired at the point in

time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the goods.

The company Tecognizes revenue rom the sale of goods measured at the fair value of
the consideration. TF the revenue cannof be telinbly measured, the company defers
tevenus recognition until the uncertainty is resalved.

The compuany considers whether there are other promises in the confract that are
separate performance obligations to which a portion of the fransaction price nezds 0
be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In defermining the transaction
price for the sale of goods, the company considers the effects of wariable
comsideration, the existence of significant financing componemnts, nconeash
comsideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

The company disaggregated the revenue recagnized from comracts with customers
into catezories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash [ows are affected by economic factors.

-14-
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Renuxl income from invesiment properties

T.ental of investmenl properties where the company retzing substartially all risks
and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as operaling leases. Rental
ingome from onerating leascs (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is
recognized in profit or loss on 4 siraight-line basis over the lease Letm.

Tnterest Incone

Interest mcome is accrued on a time basis with reference fo the principal

outstarding and the amount of revenue is measured using the effective interest
melhod.

OMher income
Other meome is Tecognized on an accrual basis,

Contract Cost

Incremental costs to obiuin o contract

Incramentzl costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that would not have heen
incurred if the contract had not been oblained, ‘The company recopnices, as an
asset, the incremental costs of oblaining a contract if the company expects o
recover those costs

Costs that would have been incurred whether or nol the contiact was obtained
shall be tecognized as an expense when mcurred. In general, the company
recognizes the incremental costs of obtaining a confract as an expense if the

amartizztion period of the asssl thal wouold have been recognized is one year or
less.

Cosis to fulfifl a contract

The company incurs cost to falfill their obligations under a contract ance it is
obtained, hut before transfermng goods or services. If the cost to full fill contract
with a customer that are not coverad under another standard such as nverturies,

property, plant and equipment, ntangible assets are recognized a8 an asset if
those costs meel the following criteria:

¥ The costs relate directly to a confract or an anticipated contract that the
cowmpany can identify,

¥ 'The costs generate or enhance resources of the company that will be
used in satisfying or in comtinuing to satisfy performance obligation in
the fusre,

¥ The coss are expected 10 be recovered.

Fulfillment costs that meel all thres of e above criteria arc required to be

recognized as an asset and expensing the costs as they are incurred is not
permutted.

Foreign Currency Iransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Composny al
Qatari Riyals at the date the transaction first gualifies for recognition. Monelary
assets and liabilifies denominated in foreign currencies are translated Qatari
Riyals at exchange prevailing al the reporting date. Dilferences arizing on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recomnized in statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measored i terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency arc translaled vsing Qatari Riyals at exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the inifial transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at
fair vahe in a foreisn currency are translated into Qatari Riyals et exchanee rates
at the date when the fair value is determined, The gain or loss arising on
ranslarion of nop-monesary items measurcd al fair valoe is treated in line with
+he recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e, translation
differences on itzms whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehznsive income or profit jor loss ere also rocopnized in other
camprehznsive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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a)

s) Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribulion lu the Company’s shazeholders is recognized as a Lability
in the Company’s financial slatements ir the period in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

) Earnings Per Share

‘The Company presents hasic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary
sharcs, Basic earnings per share is calculaled by dividing the profit or loss
attributable w ordinuy sharsholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares
held. Diluted earnings per share is determined hy adjusting the profit or loss
aliributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average mumber of
ordinary shares cutstending, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all
dilutive polential ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes and share
options granted to employees, if any.

u) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Fur (he purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists ol
cash in hand and cash at banxs.

v) Evenis Aller the Reporting Date

The financial statements are adjusted to reflect events that occurred between the
reporting date and the date when the financial statements are aurhorized for issue,
provided they give evidence of conditions (it eaisied at the reporting datc and
other events are disclosed in the financial statements where appropriate,

w) Helated Party Transactions

Darbies are considered tn he related because they have the ability to exencise
contre] over the Company or to exercise significant influence or joint control
over the Company's financial and operating decisions, Further, parties are
considerad related to the Company when the Company has the akility to exercise
control, significant influence, or jomt control over the financial and operating
deeisions of those partizs.

Transactions wilh related parties, normally, compriss of transfer of resources,
services, or obligations between the parties.

CRIVICAL  ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 4,
the management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumplions abovt the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities thal are not readily apparcnt from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered tn he relevant. Actual results may differ fom thesc
estimates.

The cstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to geeounting estimates are recognized in e poriod in which the estimate is rovised, il
the revision affcels only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods il
the revision affects both cument and fufure periods.

Critical Judgment in Applying Accounting Policies
The followings are critical judgments, apart from those involving esfimations, that

menagemert has made in the process of applying the company's accounting policies and
thst have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements;
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i)

h)

i)

i)

Classification of financial asscts

Management decides on the aequisition of a financial asset whether to classify it as fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT), amoriiced cosl (AC), or [nancial
assefts at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). The company classifies financial
assets as amortized cost if the management objeciive is to hold financial asset in arder to
collect contractual cash flows or the financial asset, if the management objective is to
achieve by both collecting comtractual cash flows and selling the financial assets it
measured the mvestment al FVOCL AT other financial assets are measurad at FVPL.
TTewever, the company substantially invested in finencial assets at amortized cost and
there were no reportable financial assels at FYOCT or FVEL.

Aveounling policy for measurement of investment propertics

Management of the company is required to choose as its accounting policy either the fam
valoe mods] or the cost mndel and shall apply this policy to all of its investment
properies, if any. The company has chosen to adopt the fair valuc model for the purpesc
of measuring its investment properties in the statement of financial position.

Determining the Iease term

Tn determining lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that creats
an cconemic iocentive to exercise an extension optom, or nol cxercise a termination
oplion. Exlensions vplions (or perivdic after termination options) arc only included m the
lease term il the lease is reasonably cerfain fo be extended (or not terminated).

Determining lease commencement date

The commencemen: datz of the Jease has been determined in relatior to the date on which
lessor mukes the underlying asset available for use by the lessee. Management has applied
its hest judement to detertnine the acmal commencement date.

Eey Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Company makes cstimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by defmition, seldom cqual the related actual resulis. The
estimates end assumptions that have a significanl risk of causing a mates jal adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilities within the next financial year are discussed
halow:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At each reporting date, the company reviews the carmyving smounts of its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets to determine wheher there is any indicarion that
those assels have suffersd from impairment, Impairment axists when the carrving valoe of
an asset or cash generating wnit exceeds ils recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value Jess costs of disposal and ils valus o uss. I aoy such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset 1s cstimated in order to detsrmine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Whers it is not possible to estimute the recoverable amaonnt of an
individual assel, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash penerating
unit to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
cost to sell and value 0 wse. [n assessing value in nse, the estimated fature cash Hows are
discounted to their prosent valuc using an sppropriste rate. The determination of
recoverable value for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are disclosed
notes & and 9 respectively.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and cquipment
The cost of items of properly, plant and equipment are depreciated on systematic basis
over the vseful lives of the assets. Management has delenmined the estfimated useful lives
of each asset and/ or category of assets based on the following factors:

s Expected usage of asset,

= Expecled physical wear and tear, which depends on operalional and

environmental factors: and

& Legal or similar limils on the vse of the assets.
Menagement has estimated no cesidusl walue for ary item of properly, plant and
equipment at the end of the uselul lives as these have heen deemed to be msignificant.
Management regularly revicw this cstimate based on the market condition at the end of
gach reporting period. The company had determined that the straight line method of
depreciation is more appropriate for the company due to underutilization of the capacty.
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iii)

vi)

¥ii)

¥iii)

Fair valuation of investment property

The company carries its investment property at fair value, with changes in far value bemg
recognized in the swtement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The
company engzged an independent valualion specialist 1o assess fair value as . December
31, 2021 and 2020 for investment property. It measures investment property by reference
to market-based evidence, using comparable prices adjusted for specific market lactors
such as nalure, location and condition of the property.

Provision for slow moving and obsolete inventorics

Inventories are held zt the lower of cost and net realizable value, When invenlories
become old or ahsolzte, an estimate is made of their net realizable valuz, Fer individually
significant amounts, the estimaticn is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which
are not individually sipnificant, but which are old or vhsolele, ars assessed collectively
and an allowance applied according to the inventory type and the degree of aging or
absolescence, based on historical costs. Any difference between the emounts will actially
be realized in firture periods and the mnounts cxpected will be recognizzd in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income.

Caleulation of expected credit losses (ECL)

When mzasuring ECL, the company uscs reasenchle and supportable forward loclking

information, which is based om assumptions for the future movements of different

ceonomie drivers and how these drivers will affect cach other.

T.nss given default is an estimate of the loss arises on delault. 1t is based on the different
hetween confraclual cash flows dus and those that the lender weuld expect to receive,
taking in to atcount cask: flows from a collateral and integral credit cnhancement.

Prubability of defaults contmued a key input of measuring ECL. The probability of
defzult is an astimate of the Tikelihood default over given time horizon, the caleulalion ol
which includes historical data, assumptions and expectation of future conditions.

Going concern

Though the matters, facts and other financial mformation disclosed in note 2 to these
finuncial statements indicates the existence of a material uncertainty, which may cast
sisrificant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as going concem. The
management and those charged with governance, has made an assessment of ifs ability to
conlinue a5 a going concern and it has clear perecption that the shareholders will resolve
io enable the company to continue its business operation for the foreseeable fumre.
There[ore, the financial statements continue ta be prepared on the zoing concern basis.

Fair value measorements

Yome nf the company™s assets are measurced at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
In cstimating the fair value of an assets, the company vse market obsenvable data fo the
exters it is available. Where level 1 inputs are not available, the company cngages
quzlificd external valuers to perform the valuation. The management works closely with
qualified external vahiers to establish the appropriate valualion techniques and mputs to
the model. Tnformation about the valugtion techniques and its inputs used in determining
the fair valuz of varicus assets are disclosed in the respective notes and nots 31

Estimating incremental borrowing rate for leases

I'he company cannot readily delenmine the interest rule implisit in the lezse, therefore, 1t
nses its merzmentz]l borrowing rates (I3R) to measure lease labilities, The IBR is the rate
of interest that the company would have to pay to borow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the [umls necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of
use gssets in a similar ceonomic environment. Management has spplicd judgments and
estimates (o IBR at the commencement of lease.

Impairment of right-of-use assets
In estimating the recoverable amourt of the nght-of-use assets, the management has made

assumptions about the achicvable market rates for similar properties with similar lease
termms.
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7)

d)

g)

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipmentl

The accounting policy telated to assessment of impairment has been applied each
reporting period to estimate the recoverable value of entire class of property, plant and
equipment. As a result and as per management's cstimaticns the recoverable value of the
entire class of property, plant and equipment are higher than their camrying value as of
mwporting date,

In genersl, on anneal bagis, the recoverable value of machinery and equipment is
determined based on external irdependent wvaluer, having oppropriate. recognized
professional quelifications and knowledge of the regionzl marker and understanding Lo
undertalee the valuation of machinery and equipment.

During 2017, the independent appraiser’s estimated recoverable value of machinery and
equipinent is lower than its carrying value by QR.6,603312. Accordingly, the amount has

been recognized as impaitment in the statement of profit or loss and other comprenensive
meome during the year 2017,

During 2020 and 2021, the recoverable value of machinery and esquipment has been
detennined by an aceredited independent appraiscr based in State of Qatar (Abdul-
Rahman Jassim Al-Sulaiti, Accredited Real Fstate Expert for Justice Courts and Qualarl
Banks). The appraicer is an industry specialist in valuing these types of machinery and
cquipment. The recoverable value was determined hased on the best indusiry practice,
prevailing market conditions of the assels, and sources of market datz. In estimating the

recoverable value of the machineries, the appraiser has applied the fair value less cost of
disposal approach.

Pursuant io the appraiser’s cutcoms of 2020, the carrying value of machinery and
equipment has been increased to QR.75,792.341 aud which resulied to reverse the
previously recognized impainnent loss of QR 4,388,081 (Exhibit B) during the year ended
Diecamber 31, 2020.

Tursuant to the sppraiser’s outcome of 2021, the recoverable value of machinery and
equipment are higher than their camying values as of reporting date (which was not
significantly deviated to reverse the previously recognized impairment losses).

The above all the decisions were laken based on the Board of Directors” approval and m
conformily with applicable Tnternational Financial Reporting Standards.

The property, plant and equipment Hsted abuve were pledged agezinst the loans and

borrowings obtamed hy the company as disclosed in note 17(e) to these fmancial
statements.

Duildings have been crected on a leasehold land obtained from Ministry of Munivipal
Affairs and Agricuiture with an annual lease rentel of QR.11,527 for 30 years which will
bz expired on Tune 30, 2031 subject to remewal. The right-of-use assets and leasc
liabilitics related to this lease contract are disclosed in note 8.

The management is m the process of ascertaming carrying amount of buildings which
carried at revaluation model that would have been recopnized had the buildings been
carried nnder the cost model for disclosure purpose.

INVESTMENT FROPERTIES

This item consist of the followings, 2021 2020
(QR.) (QR.)

Duildings - Exhibit A 12,590,000 12,590,000

The company’s invesiment property represents, a building constructed on the portion of
leasehold land (65,779 $q.Ft) for the use of warchouse rented out to an external party
based on an operating lease agreement The rental income arising from the above
investment property amournting to QR.2,400,000 for the year ended December 31, 2021
(2020: QR.2,428 422) included under other income.
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5)

b)

b}

During the years 2020 and 2021, the fair value of invesiment properly was determined by
an external independent property wvaluer, having appropriale recognized professional
qualifications and recent experience in the locatior and category of the property being
valued. The fair value was determined based on market comparable approsch that reflects
recent transaction prices for similar properties. In estimating the fam value of investment
property, the highest and hest nse of property i their corrent use. Based on the oulcome
of the cxtermal independent valuer, there were no changes to the vahartion technique
during the year and no changes on the fair value of investment properties compared Lo
previous year. Hence, no gein or loss arises as a result of fzir valuation.

The company’s investment properties biave been initially recognized during the year 2009
from property, plant and equipment and measured at fair value model from thersin.
However, during post recognition period, in numerous times, part of cost and fair valued
armounts were (ransferred betwecn (fromfto) properly, plant and equipment and
investment property, due to change in use from owner occupied to investment property
and vice versa. The menagement is in the process of asceriaining the cuumulative cost and
changes in fair vale, which had been included in the retained earnings.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The company has entered into a leass contract with the Ministry of Municipal Affairs
and Agriculture with au anmal lease rental of QRL11,527 for a period of 30 years. Asa
result of the application of IFRS 16, with effective from January 1, 2019, the compary
has recognized right-of-use assets and lease liahilities relared to this lease contract in this
statement of financial position, messurcd of the present value of the future lease
payments cn adoption as follows,

Right-of-Use Assets

Movements in right-of-use assets are as follows: 2021 2020

(QR.) (QR.)

Balance at beginning of the year 97,578 106,871

Depreciation of right-of-use assets {9.293) (9,293)
¥

Balance at eod uf the year — Exhibit A 88,285 97,578

basis for a period started from Janary 01, 2019 fo Tunc 34, 2031,

Lease Liabilities

Movements in lzase liabilitizz are as follows: 2021 2020

(QR.) (QR)
Balance at beginning of the year 09,221 105,561
Settlements during the year (11,527 {11,527}
Aceretion of interest during the year 1,522 5,187
Halance at end of the year — Note 8(c) 89,216 96,221

Iease Hability is recognizad based on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate af the date of initial application.
Leaze liabilities are monitorad within the company’™s treasury functions,

Based on maturity, the lease liabilitics are classified in the statement of financial
posifion as follows:

2021 2020

(QR.) (QR.)

T.easz liabilities-long term portion — Exhibit A 80,612 Q0,163
Lease liabilitics-short term portion — Exhibit A 8,604 R458
Total —MNote 8(h) H9216 09,221



9)

10)

a)

b)

a)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The details of cost, accumulated amortization and respective carrying value of various
categories of intangible assets are as follows:

Patents and Computer

Know-how Soltware Total
(OR.) (QR.) (QR.)

Cust
As at December 31, 2019 10,329,937 596,044 10,925,951
As at December 31, 2020 10,320,937 506,044 10,925,981
As at Decemher 31, 2021 10,329,937 596,044 10,925,981
Accumulated amortization
Az at December 31,2019 - 306,044 596,044
As at December 31, 2020 0- 596,044 556,014
As at December 31, 2021 BT 596,044 596,044
Carrying Value
Asx at December 31, 2021 — Exhibit A 10,329,937 -0- 10,329,937
As gl December 31, 2020 — Exhibit A 10,329,937 -{)- 10,325 037

The company acquired the [ull rights for the nse of the patents and know how without
any limiations and the patents now belong to the company with full rights. However,
defeets (i any) on existing patent rights is being upgraded by the manzgement o maet
overall ohjective of the Company.

The accounting policy related jo assessment of impairment disclosed in note 4 have been
applied as of reporting date to estimate the recoversble value ol eutive classes of
intangible assets. As a result, the recoverable value of the enbire classes of ntangible
assets ure higher than their carrying value as of reporting date. However, during the year
2020, the compauy has engaged an external accredited mdependent appraiscr having
appropriate professional qualification, knowledge and understanding to ascartain the
recoverable vame of patents and know-hew related to safety syringes () Sefe (PRP-4Z5).
Based on the appraissr report, it has been estimated the rccoverable amount of
(QR.10,370,%85 which is higher than the cartying value as of Decermber 31, 2020. The
recovershle velie has heen estimated bascd on the value in use as promulgated by
Tternational Financisl Reperting Standards.

INVENTORTES
This item consists of the [ollowing: 2021 2020
(QR.) (QR.)
Trading stocks 12,367,021 12,263,210
Raw materizls 7,699,594 3590232
Fimished goods 3,499,210 1,569,336
Spare parts 2,453,283 2,232 544
Work in progress 962,150 1,573,550
Consumables and others 195,107 173,602
Sulb Total 27,174,365 23 402,534
Less: Provision for slow moving inventories - note 10(b)  (109,471) (1,371,223}
Net 27,064,804 21,831,311
Goods in transit -0- 477,545
Total — Exhibit A 27,064,894 22,308,860
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12)

13)

b)

a)

b)

Provision for slow moving inventories

Movements during the year were as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Reversal of provision during the vear

Balance at end of the year — Mote 10{a)

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
This item consisis of the following:

Accounts receivable — Mote 11(c)

Provision for expected credit losses -Nole 11(b)
Mel

Supplier advances

Margin deposit

Prepaid cxpenses

Staff recervables

Crthers

Total — Exhibit A

Frovision for expected credit losses
Movement during the year were as follows:

Bal:mee at beginning of the year
Feversul during the year

Balance at end of the year — Note 11(a)

2021 2020
(QR.) (QR.)
1,571,223 1,571,223
(1,461,752) o
109,471 1571223
2021 2020
(QR.) (QR.)
20,934,995 19,604,137
(3.841,166) (6,436,401}
17,093,829 13,169,736
3535249 826,640
495,465 2,093,755
14,152 41,138
72,758 5110
65.426 6,921
21,276,879 16,203,300
2021 2020
{OR.) (QR.)
6,436,401 7452266
(2,595,235) (1,015,865)
3,841,166

6,436,401

Concentration: A sum of QR.18,962,065 receivahle from four major customers, which
represents 91% of the total accounts receivable as al December 31, 2021 (2020:
QR.17.317,893 receivable from three major customers, which represents 88% of the total

accounts receivable).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
This item consists of the following:

Cash in hand
Cash at banks

Tolal — Exhilyit A and D
Lasa: Bank overdrall — Exhibit &

Met

SHARE CAPITAL
This item consists of the following:

Authorized, issued and fally paid up capital with 2
par value of QF.1 zach — Exhibit A

Authorized, issued and fully paid wp share capital
(number of shares}

e

2021
(QR.)
442
5,191,520

T5191.962
(14,269.226)

(9,077,264)

z020
(QR.}

9,524
3 025,694

3,035,218
(15,035,750)

(12,000,532}

2020

115,500,000

115,500,000



14)

15)

16)

17)

b)

)

h)

¢)

LEGAL RESERVE

The legal reserve of the company zmounting to QR.30,549.621 (Exhibit A) as at
Deceraber 31, 2021 (2020: QR.30,431,538) created, pursuant to Qatari Commercial
Companies’ Law No. 11 of 2015, which mandates 10% of the net profit for the ycar is to
be deducted annually and retained in the legal reserve account. ‘The deduction shall be
suspended when the balance in this reserve account amounts to at least 30% of the
Company’s capital and is not available for distribution excepl in the circumstances
specilicd in the law,

REVALUATION RESERVE

The revaluation reserve amounting to QR.11,999. 694 (Lxhibit A} as at December 31,
2021 (2020: QR.11,999,694) relates to the revaluation of buildings in the previous years
a5 owner-occupied buildings recognized in property, plant and equipment.

The management is in the process of determining depreciation baszd on the revalued
warryng amount of the building and depreciation based on ifs original cost to transfar
ceriain revaluation reserve Lo retained earnings. Such transfiers will not be made through
staternent of profit or loss and other comprehensive meome.

EMFLOYLES® ENID OF SERVICE BENEFITS
The movements in the employess’ end of service benefits during the year are as follows:

2 2020
(QR.) (QR.)
Balance at begicning of the year 973,031 997.117
Provisions for the year 190,754 163,780
Payments during the yoar (82,107 (18%9,860)
Balance at end of the year — Exhibit A 1,081,676 973,031
LOANS AND BORROWINGS
This ilem censisis of the following: 2021 2024
(QR.) QR
Term loans s, 680,438 93,205,287
Documentary credit facility 32,069,022 33241278
Tatal — Note 17 (b), (¢) & (d) 127,749,460 126,444,563
The loans and borrowings are classified as follows: 2021 2020
(QR) (QR.)
Long term portion - Exhibit A 77,640,558 07.755.463
Shorl term portion — Exhibit A 0,108,202 25,683,102
Total ~Note 17(z) 127749460 126,444,563
Movements of the loans and borrowings during the year were as follows:
2021 2020
(QR) (QR.)
Balance at beginning of the yeat 126,444,565 104,768,157
Net movements in loans and borrowings (principal) (2,484.226) 20,100,041
Imterest acerued during the year 3,970,398 1,937,303
Interest paid during the vear {181,277) (360,936)
Bulanee al end of the year — Note 17(a) 1&'?,745‘,45[! 12:6,444,565



d)

€)

Details of Loans and Borrowlngs 2021 2020

(OR.) Q)
From a local commarcial bank * 1,341,320 4 843,097
From a development banke ** 125,408,140 121,600,708
Total— Note 17(a) 127,749,460 126,444,565

Details of the Facilities Obiained from a Local Commercial Bank

The company obtained a term loan, documentary credit, overdraft and bunk guaraniees
facilities from a local commercial bank for the purpose of warehouse construction and short
torm woerking capital. The term loan was rescheduled after initial agrsement and short term
working capital bomowings repayable within one year.

Details of the Facilities Obtained from a Development Bank

The compary hes oblained numerous facilities from a local development bank [M/s. Qatar
Development Bank, one of major sharcholders wntil December 31, 2020) for different
purpeses such as; to purchase machineries and equipment, scitlement of outstanding supplier
dues, mecting operational and working capital requirsments, purchase of raw materials, Lo
finance warehouse constriction and purchase of medical supplies for resale.

Though the imderlying facilities are carried differsnt maturity periods and supposed to seftls
i shorter period, the facilities have been rescheduled by the sbove development bani
frequently. Ilence, during the years ended Devember 31, 2020 and December 31, 2021 most
of the above loass have been rescheduled with revised terms and cenditions. Until December
31, 2020, the borrowings waived for collection in the next 12 manths, which is in line with
local development bank’s financial support to the company, However, from the date on
which that the above development bank exit their ownership from the cumpany, the
borrowings terms and conditions are generalized and the company shall be obligaled to pay
fhe borrowings as and when fall due, Hence, the barrewings are classified on absolute terms
and conditions of loan agreements with the above development bunk prevailing as at
December 31, 2021. However, the board of directors confirmed their intention to obtain the
consent from the above local devalopment bank not to make any demand for the repayment
in next twelve months.

The facililies are initially given on a standalonc basis snd some of them are rescheduled
siwhsequently. The underlining terms and conditions attached to the each of the facilities arc
varied in terms of purpose, irterest rates and repayable terms. As disclosed above, until
Devember 31, 2020, the repayable terms of the facilities zre mrelevant as it has agreed lo
extend more than 12 months from the lender, however, as at Tepurling dule due to withdrawal
of the above local development bank as major cwning capacity ol the company, the
hortowings arc classified as to short and long term based on the eontractual obligations,

Dietails of collaeral provided apainst the facilities:

Based on the Mortgaged Contract with M/s. Qatar Development Bark (being a first
beneficiary and major dcbt provider), the company’s trade name, license, industrial
registration, machinery and equipment including production lines, intangible assels including
intellectual properiicz owned by the company have besn pledged with M. Qatar
Development Bank. The company’s industrial regisration has been notified to provide the
above pledges.

Based on the Morteaged Contract wilh the zbove local commercial bank (being a second
benaficiary and a lender), the company’s right-to-use land, buildings, factory, machinery and
equipment, tools, Taw materials, finished goods and nther related assets including license are
pledged with the ahove commercial bank.

In addition to the above scouritics mentioned in the Mortpaped Contract, pursuant to the
Master Bank Facility agreement, the followings are also pledped apainst borrowings:

¥ Assignment of insurance policies covering 1009 of credit exposmire from M/s. Qatar
Dievelopment Bank,

¥ Assignment of certain customer contracts in favor of M/s. Qatar Development Bank
to cover certain faeility amounts.
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19)

20)

a)

b)

b)

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES

This item consists of the following:

Acoonmnts payshles (irade) —Note 18(b)
Customer advances’ contract Labilities

Accrued expenses

Dividend payable

Accounts payablz (non-trads)

Trovision Lor leave salary and airfare

Eetentions payable

Provision for social and sports fand contribution
Others

Total — Fxhibit A

2021
(QR)
6,301,172
3,001,613
1,729,111
214,541
104,750
92,110
99,858
29,521
36,158

2020
((R.)
2,360,424
1,553,791
1,321,948
214,841
580 548
E25,770
49 558
22,105
63,620

Concentration: A sum of QR.3,588,389 payable o tuse major supplicrs of the company,
which represents 57% of the total accounts payable as at Lecember 31, 2021 (2020:
QR.1,005,082 payable to threz major suppliers of the company, which represents 43% of

the tolal aceounls payable).

REVENUE

The revenue type wise consists of the following:

Sales of syringes

Szles of wading products
Sales of nacked needles

Sales of [V cannula and olbers

Tatal — Exhibit B & Note 19(h) & (5)

Ravenue by geographical locafion are a3 follows:

Within Catar
Outside Qatar

Totul — Note 19{a)

Revenue by customer are as follows:

Corporate cuslomers
Covernment customers

Total —Note 19(a)

OFERATING COST

This ilem consists of the Lllowing:
Cost of syringes

Cost of wading products

Cost of packed needles
Cost of [V cannula and others

Tolal — Exhibit B

2021
(QR.)
33,094,288
5,078,874
1,619,164
762,209

40,554,535
2021
(QR.)
13,539,266
17,015,269

2021
(QR.)

18,190,747
12,363,788

40,554 535

2021
(QH1.)
74,054,753
1,053,836
1,157,027
497,231

29,662,847

2020
(QR.)
3471487
19.238,391
364,461
1,494,171

24 568,510

(QR.)
23,059,945
1,508,565

24,568,510

4,685,808
15,882,612

2020
(QR.)
3,092,705
13,165,990
229,371
1,854,179

18,342,245



21)

2]

23)

24)

b)

OTHER INCOME
This item consists of the following: 2021 20
(QR.) (QR.)
Fentsl income 2 A00,000 2,428,422
Reversal of provision for expected credit losses* 2505235 1,015,865
Beversal of provision for slow moving inventory* 1,461,752 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment -0- B0 .
Ohers 211924 13,774
Tntal — Exhibit B 6,668,911 3,466,361

The company has reversed certain provisions amounting to QR.4.056,987 during the year
ended December 31, 2021 on tae approvals of Board of Directors (December 31, 2020:

QR.1,015,865).

SELLING AND DISTRIBULTON EXPENSES

"This item comsists of the following: 2021 2020
(QR.) (QR.)
Freight charges and other distribulion expenses 547,856 250,194
Advertisements and business promotion 257,198 210978
Total — Exhibit B TU800,054  45L172
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
This itern consists of the following: 2021 2020
(QR.) (QR.}
Slall cosl —MNote 23(k) 1,753,153 2707281
TLegal and professional fees 511,251 578,335
Tnsurancs 140,262 153,147
Repair and maintenance 317,609 277,351
Lilectricizy and water 281,207 104,485
Foreign axchange losses 212,887 64,498
Tnventorics written off 67,451 121.050
IT and communication 54,909 45774
Travelling expenses 16,312 JTIRES
Office expenzes 76,699 69,815
Olliers 054,547 220,911
Total — Exhibit B 5,385,287 4 4365534

'The managing director and board member iz entitled for QR.600,000 as salary
and honuses which are included umder staff cost for the year ended December 31,

2021 (2020:QR.160,0007.

DEPRECIATION

This jtern consisls ol the following: 2021
(QR.)

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 5,404,131

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 0,293

Tolal — Exhibit B 5413.424

-8

2020
(QR.)

5.475.545
9,293

5484 838
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26)

27)

28)

FINANCE COST
This item consists of the following, 2021 2020
(QR.) {QR.)
Tnterest! bank prolit oo loans and borrowings 3,970,398 1,237,303
Interest on bank overdrai Te4,171 793215
Finance cost on lezse labilities 1,522 5,187
Otker finance charges 44,915 149 275
Total — Fxhibit B 4,781,006 2.884,950
EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share
Lhe basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss [or he year
atiributahle to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outsianding during the year as follows:

2021 2020
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
(L) 1,180,828 BR4. 183

Weighicd average mamber of ordinary shares outstanding 115,500,000 115,500,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share (QR.) - Exhibit B 0.010 D.00s

Mo separate ciluted eamnings per share was calculated sinces the diluted carnings per share was
equal tn hasic earnings per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the company is organized mto one business mmit hased on its
neture of activitics, as the cormpeny’s operations persain to the manufacturing end trading of
disposable syringes, medical devices and trading of medica! tols and supplies. Decisions
about resource allocation snd monitoring of performance are based on the single business uni
identificd by the management. However, geographically, the company’s revenue congist of
exports to some foreign countries as disclosed in note 19 (b), except that the company does
not have any other foreign operations,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties, as defmed in International Accounting Standlard 24: Related party
Disclosures, nclude major sharcholders, directors and other key management personnel of
the company and enfities controlled, jointly controlled or significanily influenced by such
parties.

The company's transactions with related pariies are ann’s leogth and incwred m ordinary
covrse of business activities. Pricing policies, terms and conditions of the fransactions with
key management personnel and their related parties were approved by the management and
disclused as follows;

Traunsactions with Related Partics

Unril December 31, 2020, 'S, Qatar Development Bank being a major shargholder and
lending financial institution was & related party of the company. However, as of reporting

date uud due to withdrawal of the above local development bank as major ewning capacity of
the company, it has been presumed thal the related party relationship is no more appropriate.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Koy management perscrnel comprise the Beand of Directors and key members of
rianagement having authority and responsibility lor planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the compamy:

Thiring the year endad December 31, 2021 an amount of QR.600,000 has been incurred as
salary and bomus to the menaging director and a board member of the company (December
31, 2020; 160,000). Tn addition, no any remuneration and other compensation to the key
member of the management incurred for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2021,
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a)

COMMIITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The following summarizes the significant confractual commitments and contingencies:

2021 2020

(QR.) (QR.)

Guaralees 2,166,161 4,126,531
Guarzntee cheques 16,153 -0-
Capital commilments =i 210452
Letrer of credit -0- 540,843

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company monitors and managzes the risks relating to its business and operations. The
Company has expesure Lo the [ullowing tisks from its use of financial instruments.

= Lignidity risk

*  Credit risk

«  Capital risk

* Market risk

»  (perational risk

= Other risks

The Company szeks to minimize the effects of these risks by diversifying the sources of
its capital. It maintains titnely reports sbout its risk managzment function and monitors
risks and policics mplementud wo mitigate risk exnosures.

Rtisk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and vversight of
the Company’s risk management framework. The Company monitors and manages the
rizks relating to businesses and operations on a tentative basis and yet to establish separate
risk management funclion wilk clear teims of reference from the Doard of Directors, its
committees and the associated executive management commitiees as of reporting date.
This is to be supplemented with a clear orpanizational structure with documented
delegated authorities and responsibilitics from the Boeard of Directors to executive
managernent committess and senior MmanageTs.

The Company’s risk management policy ramewaork which sets out the risk profiles for the
Company, risk management, contrel and business conduct standards for the Company s
operations will be put in placs n the near fulure.

Linuidity risk ;

Iiquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raising funds to
mest commitments associaled with ficapcial instruments. The Company manages
ligwidity by mamnfining adcquate reserves, banking facilities, and by continually
moniloring cash flows and matching the matrity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

The Company’s appreach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far a8 possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, inder both normal and
glressed vonditions, without incurmring vnacceptabls losses or risking damage to the
Company”s reputation.

The following arc the contractual maturities of financial liakilibes:

Carrying Contractnnl Tess than " Maore than

December 31, 2021 At eosh outflows 1 year 1 year
(OR.) _ (OB} (O} (CVRL)

Dividend payahle 214,841 214,541 214,441 -0-
Accounts and olher payailes 11,480,243 114,293 11,480,293 -0-
Loans and bormwings 127,745,460 127,749 460 20, 104,02 TT.640,558
Oyenlmll 14,269,226 14,269,226 14,264,224 0
Lenge lahilities R9.216 49216 LA RN et
Tatal 153,803,036 158,803,036 76,081 860 77,721,170
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Carmying  Contractual cesh Less than More than

Diecemter 31, 2020 ENLCUNE ourlews 1 wear 1w
(OR (R (O] _ IGR
Drvidend payzbl= 214841 214,841 21484 [
Apcounts ead other popnbles &, 137062 6,137,052 6,137 082 [}
Laztigs sl Donuwings 120,444 565 126,444 565 23,685,100 07,755 461
(verdreft 15,M57350 15,M35,750 15,033,750 4]
Lenzz linbilitizg 03721 09,221 8458 90,763
Fital B 147531439 147,531,425 50085213 7 b46 22

It i3 rot expected that the cash flows included in the malurity analysis would occur
significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts,

b) Credit Risk

c)

Credit risk refers to risk that 2 counter party will defanlt on its cbligation resulling in
financial loss to the company. Tn ordsr to minimize the credit risk, the management has
developsd and implemented a credit risk grading for its major customer and other debtors to
categorize the company™s credit exposuwre according to their degree of default. The
management uses the publicly availeble financial information’s and its own trading records
with customer for this purposc.

Financial instruments that are potentially subject the company tn the credit tisk are cash at
banks, aceounts and other receivable.

Accounts and other receivable

The management has a credit risk policy which monitors the credit risk exposure to accounts
and other receivable in ongoing basis and eredit evaluslion are perfonmed on all castomers
requiring credit and are approved by the management, Expected credit losses of accounts
receivable is disclosed in nole 11(b) 1o these financial statements. Appropriate procedures
for follow=up and recovery are in place to menilor credit risk,

Cash at banks

The eredit risk on bank balances is minimal because the counter partics are banks with high
credit ratmg and company maintain all its bank accounts in well reputzd banks.

The maximum risk exposure to the company is represented in the carrying amount of these

instruments as disclosed in the relevant noles. The following s an age anzlysis of these
instroments:

Mol Past due PastDue  Mare than

Decemler 31, 2021 past due 0-20 days SHL-TRdb sy 181 days Total

{0R.] (O} (on} (L) (R
Cash at hanks 5,191,520 T 0 - 5.141,520
Accounts and other receivable (nel) 12,737,791 S05K120 T 796 3695820 21,262,727
et 17,920411  40SRXH T, 706 JAU5HT0 26,454,247

R Nt Tzt due Past Cue More tien

Diccember 31, 2020 pestdus  U-D0 days 41-180 duys 131 dﬂ-}'_i Tital

(o) 0w ) LOES (R} QR
Uzt il bemks 3,025 504 - - A 3,008,660
Accownts and other receivabla (net) A, 270023 3,519572 G010 015 R R R 16,162, 162
MNet TIB5 737 351952 GOVT11S 2,355432 19,147,856

Capital Risk

The Compary's policy is Lo maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital
consists of share capiml of the Company. Tn spile of carrenl level of gearing and low level
profit ratios, tha Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and the petential level of
dividends to ordinary shareholders,

Regularly, the Company reviews is capital structure and considers the cost of capital and
the risks assnciatzd with it Tt manages its capital to cnsure that it will be able fo support its
operations while maximizing the retiim to sharsholders through the optimization of the debt
and equity balance.



d)

()

(ii)

The Compuny's net debt (o adjusted aquity ratio at the reporting date was follows:

2021 2020

(QR.) (OR.)

Total Liabilitics 154,884,712 148,904,470
Lexs: cash in hand and at banks (5,191.962) (3.035.218)
Net deht 149,692,750 145869252
Total Equity 32,661,133 31,508 826
MNet debt to equity 4.58:1 4.63:1

Thers were no changes in the company's approach to capital management dwing the year.
Due to above high lewel debt financing, the board of directors regularly review, the
possible optioms to dilute the high level of gesring of the company,

Farket Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in matiet prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
inlerest rales and equily prices which will allecl the company’s income or the vahe of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk manaperent is (o manage
and control market rick exposures within accepable parameicrs, while optimizing the
retorn.

The markel risk primarily consists of the followings:

s Toreign corrency risk
*  Interesirale risk
v Hquity price risk

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company incurs foreign currency risk on its purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than Qatarl Riyals which iz company’s functional and presentation
CUITCNCY.

The company does not hedge its currency exposure. However, management is in the
opinien that the company™ exposure to currency risl is minimal as the major items of
the foreign currency fnancial assets and liabilities are denominated in US Dollars are not
considered to represent significant currency risk. While the receivables dencminated in
other foreign currencies such 25 the GBP and EUR are mnimal ard the company has
made adsquate provision for expected credit Tosses apainst hose receivables, which
reduces the foreipn currency exposure.

Interest Rate Risk

The company hes maintained recognized financial instuments which are subject to
inerest rate risk and which may potentially result in changes in the contractually
determined cash (lows associated with or may cemse repricing of such financial
instruments.

The company i exposed fo interest rate risk on its interest bearing liabililics, which
wiainly consist of bank overdraf®ts and loans and bowwowings. The company adopts a
policy of ensuring that interest rate is on a fixed rate basis, thus mimmizing mierest rate
risk. A significant portion of loans and borrowings pertaing to a local development hanlk,
At the reporting date, the interest-bearing Jnancial instruments are as follows:

-31-



(iii)

Profile

At the reporting date the mterest rate profile of the company’s interest-bearing financial
insiruments were:

Variablc ratc instrumecats Carrying smount  Carrying amount
2021 2020
(QR.) (QR.}
Financial liabilities
Loan and boarmowings 127,749,460 126,444, 565
Tenk everdrad 14,269,226 15,035,750
Equity Price Risk

Other market price risk mainly consists of equity price risk. The equity prics risk arises from
invesanents in equity mstruments. Muanagement of the company momitors the mix of debt and
equity securities in its investment portfolio based on market indices (if any). However, there
were no such instruments available as of seporting dats.

Equity price risk is the risk thal the fir values of equity instuments decrease as a result of
changes in the price indices of investrments in other entities’ equity Instrumenis.

€) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide varicly of causes
sagociated with the company’s procasses, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and Tom
external fictors olher than credit, market and lguidity risks such a3 those arising from legal
and regulatory regairements and penerally accepted standards of corporate behavior.
Operatioral risks arise from all of the company’s operations. The company’s chjeclive is to
manage operational risks so as to halance the avoidanve ol financial losses and damage to the
company’s reputation with overzll cost effectiveness and to avoid conirol procedures that
restrict initiative and ecreativity. The primary responsibility for the development and
implementation of wontrols o address operational risk is assigned fo senior management
within sach busmess unit.
This tesponsibility is suppotted by the development of overall standards or the managemen:
of operational risk in the [ollowing sreas:

*  Requirements for sppropriate segregaden of duties, includimg the mdependant

anthorization of transactions.

*  Requiremerts for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions.

*  Complisnce with repulatory and other legal requirements.

»  Documentation of controls and procedures.

*  Requirements for the periodic asscssment ol operational risks faced, and the adequacy

of controls and procedures o address the risks identifizd. '

= Requirements for the raporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action.

= Development of conlingency plans.

#  Training and professivoal development,

»  Ethical and business standands.

= Risk mitigation, including nsurance where this is effective.

f) Other Risks

Other risks to which the company is exposed zre regulatory risk, legal risk, aml reputation
risl.
= Repulatory misk is controlled through a framework of compliance policics und
procedures. The operations of the company are subject to regalatory requirements of
the State of Calar,
" TLegal risk is managed through the etfective use of internal and exlerma! logal advisers.
= Reputation risk is controlled through the company regular examination of issues that
are considered to have repercussions for the company, with pnidelmes and policies
belmg issued as appropiiate.

%3,
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FATR VALUE

Fair Valne Measurement
The Company messures certain financial instuments and certain non- financial assets, 1f
applicable, at fair valuc at cach reporting dace.

Fuir value related disclesures tfor fnancial instroments and non-finencial assels thal are
measured at fair value are disclosed in these financial statements, iF any.

Fair valuc is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability In an
orderly transaction betwsen market participants al the measurement date, The fair value
measurement is based on the presumprion that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
Lability takes place either:

# In the principal market for the assel or lizbilily, or

¥ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asscl or

liability

The principal or the most advanlageous markel must be accessible to by the compamy.
The fair valus of an asset or a liahility i3 measured using the assumptions (nal markel
participants would use when pricing the asset or liabilily, assnining that market participants
zct in their economic best interest, A fair value measurcment of # non-financial asset tales
into acconnt a market parlicipant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in

its hizhest and hast use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highes: and best use.

The company uses valuation lechnigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient dats are available lo weasure fair velue, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable mputs.

AN amssets and liabilitizs for which fair value i3 measured or disclosed in these Ananeial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
¥ Level 1:- Quoted (unadjusted) marker prices in active markels for idenbical assels o
liabilities.
» Level 2:- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value messurement is directly or indirectly vbservable,
¥ Level 3:- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that i3 significant to the
fair value measurement is unohservable,
For assets that are recognized i the [uancial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
deterrnines whether transfers have ocenrred between Tevels in lhe hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based an the lowest level input that js sipnificant to the fair value measurement
a5 2 whols) al lhe eud of each reporting period.

Accounting Classification And Fair Valucs

Based on the ahove fair value measurements, it has been asscssed that the faiv valnes of the
‘inarcial irstruments pressnted in these financial staements as of reporting date are not
materizlly different from their carrymg values,

Fair Value Hierarchy

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining 2nd disclosing the fair vane of the
company’s assets by velualion lechnigue:

Level 1: quoted (anadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assels or labililies;

Level 2: other techniques for which all imputs which have a significant effect on the Tecorded
fair vahie are nhservahle, cither directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
fhat are not based on observable market data.

The tollowmg table shows an analysis of assets recorded at Tair value by level of the feir value
hizrarchyn

As af December 31, 2021 = (QR.) Ll‘.‘\-‘t:l 1  Levell Level 3 Total
Tuvestinent properties —at fair value -N- -0- 12,500,000 12,590,000
Buildings - at revaluation -lI- -0- 36,984,036 30,984,036
Machirery and couipment — at recovesable value l- -0-  T2.880,141 71.580.141
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As at December 31, 2020 — (QR.) Lovel1  Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total

Investment properiics — at fair valuc - - 12390000 12,5%0.000
Builidings - al revaluation =0- =0-  3ERO0.11B 3R A50,118

Machinery and equipment — at recoverable value -0- - 75792341 75792341
During the years ended Decernber 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no transfers between Level |
and Lavel 2 fair valoe measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements. However, the inbangible assets indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
during the year cnded Deccrmber 31, 2020,

THE IMPACT OF COVID-19

The coronavims (COVID-1Y) steep spread across the world led the World Health Organizetion
tn declare it a5 pandemic and a zlobal heallh emergency. Numerous sectors of the global
economy are etfected and the long term economic and Musiness consequence remain uo-kKoown
which lead to unccrtaintics m the global economic enviromment. However, the severity of the
pandemic was confrnlled as a result of afective and rigoroms approach adopted by the
Govemment of Qatar, hance, impact (o the Quiarl Economy was limitcd.

The sudden outbresk of COVID-19 had a vast impact to the country and most of the indusiries,
Even though, the demand of some of the producls snd services related to various industries
were fallen due to limit of social gathering and reduction of income, there was a positive
response 1o the certain industries sech as medical and health care services, duz to surge of
health and hygiene concerns. Consequently, the demand for syringes and other related produets
hava bean drastically increased and the company was able to ceplure the most of this novel
market using its existing market knowledge, supply and customer chains as compared to other
mmdusties. Further, the company has signilicantly enhanced its business activities during the
pandemic with the Onancial assistance from Mfs. Qatar Development Bank.

The Board of Directors have performed a reasonable assessment of COVID-19 based on the
available guidaoce, Listorical expericnce, ndustey beodupack and ether oo thal are
considered to be relevant on the cotnpany’s all aspects. The details of the arcas where the high
level of assessment carmied out are as follows;

Use of Estimates and Judgments

In the application of the company's accounting policics, the Board of Dircctors has assessed
potential impacts of the current ¢conomic volatilily in determination of the reported amourts of
the corpany’s financial and non-financial assets. The judgments, estimates and assnmptions
arc Board of Dircetors® best assessment and determined based on the available information. In
addition, the company has specifically enalyzed the impacts of pandsmic when delermining
Expected Credit Losses where forward looking lactors and general economic conditions of <he
industry in which the debtors operate are assessed to ensmuwe that no sigrificant credit risk
exposures us ol the reporling dale.

Going Concern

The company ccntinaes fo adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements
for the year ended Degember 31, 2021, The uneertainty a3 ‘o futire impact on the company,
due to COWVID 19 has been critically assessed by the Board of Directors. Thus, the management
is not awere ol eny malerial uncertainties that may cast significant deubt about the company's
ghility to continue as a soing concern.

Events dfter The Reporting Perind

The Board of Directors assessed, the effect of COVID 19 on the company as and when
dentified or availahle for their aftention. The implications of the pandemic are challenging,
angoing and the outcome of this event 1s unknown and therofore, the impact of the compary for
condTions that srese after the reporting period may not be identifiable and quantifiabls at the
time ol issuznce of these financial statements. Ilewever, if any major events will be taken
place, those will be considered, adjustad and disclosed sccordingly in the subsequent linancial
statentents which will be prepared [or the company.
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Based on all the above assessments and after consicering all the adjustmerts, it has bean
confirmed by the Board of Directors that there are no significant impact o the company due to

COWID 1%, Hence, no changes would or will be taken place on the reported halances as at
Decernber 31, 2021,

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative mnformation and figures presented for 2020 have been reclassified where
nevessary to preserve consistency with the 2021 information and figures, However, such

reclassificalions did not have any effect on the previously reported net profit, other
comprehensive incoma or equity.
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